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TO:
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FROM:
Farrell Presnell, RFP 07-11 Coordinator


Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC)

SUBJECT:
Amendment No. 5 – to RFP 0711 – Answers to Bidders’ Questions Numbers 61- 127.
The following Answers to Bidders' Questions Numbers 61 through 127 are issued as Amendment No. 5 to the Request for Proposals 07-11.  

Note:  These Administrative Office of the Courts Answers to Bidders’ Questions may only explain or clarify some aspect that is already addressed in the RFP.  But some of the answers may also supplement or change what was previously stated in the RFP, or in an appendices. Therefore it is important that bidders read all questions and answers
61. Are there any incumbent contractors providing data warehousing and business intelligence services at AOC? 

AOC Answer:  There are no incumbent contractors providing DW or BI services at AOC.
62. Is this project fully funded?
AOC Answer:  Funds for this project are included in the 2007-09 Biennium Funding Request, and we anticipate approval of that funding request.  Until the legislative process is complete, it would be inappropriate to answer this question with a simple yes or no.
63. Does AOC currently have or foresee a need to integrate any unstructured data sources?  For example, case related word documents, pdfs, etc.

AOC Answer:  There are no plans to do so in this project.  However, the need for integrating unstructured data is foreseen within the next 3-5 years.

Question 64 refers to:  On Page 6 the RFP states that “The DB2 databases (running on z/OS) currently in use for the legacy system data will be the initial source for the Operational Data Store (ODS)…. The data warehouses are loaded nightly from the ODS.”
64. If ODS is currently operational what are its current data sources?

AOC Answer:  The DB2 databases are the single data source for the ODS at this time.
Question 65 refers to:  On Page 6 the RFP States that “The most significant investment is in the use of Informatica Power Center for extracting data from the ODS to load the warehouse.”
65. Has the AOC purchased the data profiling and data quality components with Informatica?

AOC Answer:  AOC has not purchased any of Informatica’s data profiling or data quality components.

Questions 66-68 refer to:  On Page 6 the RFP States that “The majority of end users access the data using Hyperion 8, although some courts continue to run Brio 6.”
66. Which Hyperion products/components does the AOC have currently and how many end-users are currently using Hyperion?

AOC Answer:  AOC has only the ad hoc query component of Hyperion.  About 100 end-users are still using Brio 6 and approximately 300 are using Hyperion 8.

67. Does the state of Washington plan on upgrading to Hyperion Enterprise 9+?  If not, does your current software licensing permit an upgrade to the latest release and performance enhancements?

AOC Answer:  Any potential upgrade to Hyperion 9 will be a result of the solution proposed by the apparently successful vendor.

68. Given the recent news coverage of the Oracle-Hyperion acquisition, how flexible would the state of Washington be to possibly adopt a different, vendor-neutral approach that may require the usage of some non-Hyperion products?

AOC Answer:  AOC is willing to consider all options and is not committed to a Hyperion only solution.

69. On Page 6 the RFP States that “Currently, three (3) terabytes of storage is available for the warehouse.”  Is the available space for the existing data warehouses and EDW or is it the total storage available solely for EDW?

AOC Answer:  Three terabytes is what is allocated for the existing warehouse.  The EDW is not limited by that amount.

Questions 70-71 refer to:  On Page 7 the RFP States that “Delivery of a single, consolidated data repository that has been loaded and tested for performance.  Note:  The data to be loaded includes, but is not limited to, case data (basic information, docketing, charges, and proceedings), accounting data, participant data (litigants, attorneys, judges, etc.), and organizational data (courts, law enforcement agencies).  The EDW will incorporate data from four court levels: appellate courts, superior courts, courts of limited jurisdiction, and juvenile courts.”

70. Is the contractor expected to load the above mentioned data to the EDW within the performance period of this contract?

AOC Answer:  Yes.  

71. Has the AOC defined requirements and specifications for loading the above mentioned data? 

AOC Answer:  Yes.  

Questions 72-74 refer to:  “On Page 8 the RFP States that: “Professional Services

· Provide a data warehouse architecture for the AOC.

· Provide project management oversight for implementation of hardware, replication software, data quality software, and decision support and reporting tools.
· Provide training for and knowledge transfer to AOC staff.
· Provide training for end users of the decision support and reporting tools.”

72. The required services do not mention integrating data sources in the RFP. Is AOC planning to come out with a separate RFP for the EDW and business intelligence implementation services?

AOC Answer:  No.

73. How many AOC staff members is the contractor required to train?  How many training/knowledge transfer sessions is AOC envisioning? 

AOC Answer:  

ETL software training:  Five ETL developers and two administrators will require training.

Replication software training: two administrators and two developers will be trained.

Data quality software: two administrators will require training.  Six end users will need to be trained in how to develop data quality rules and create them in the software.

ETL, replication and data quality software training will occur in a single location.

Reporting and ad-hoc query training:  End user training may span locations across the state of Washington.  Options for statewide training include either regional training at 4 to 5 sites statewide, or county training in each of the 32 judicial districts (comprising 39 individual counties).  

We are estimating 200 court and 30 AOC staff will need to be trained as end users.  Of those, 80 or so will be frequent users with a high degree of competency.  Ten of the AOC will be expert users, adept at all aspects of the end-user tool.

There will be two staff designated for administrator training.

74. How many end-users is the contractor expected to train?  How many training sessions are expected from the contractor?

AOC Answer:  See Answer 73 above.
Questions 75-77 refer to:  On Page 15 the RFP States that the reporting tool should have  “The ability to allow up to 1000 concurrent users”

75. What is the total number of expected users?  By “concurrent”, does the AOC mean that 1000 users logged into the system, or is it 1000 users running the reports at the same time?

AOC Answer:  AOC anticipates up to 1000 users logged on at the same time, with up to 500 running queries at the same time.

76. What is profile of end users?  Can AOC provide a break up of number of users by executive, basic, intermediate and power users?

AOC Answer:  AOC Answer:  Estimates are for 2 administrators, 10 designers, 80 power users, 120 casual users.  The remaining users will be public access users accessing the warehouse using canned queries available through the AOC web site.

77. How many non-court users do the AOC anticipates being on concurrently on the system?
AOC Answer:  See above.

78. Is AOC contemplating a Pre-Proposal conference?

AOC Answer:  No pre-proposal conference is planned.

79. Will the AOC provide an example(s) of the materialized views that were developed for superior court users?

AOC Answer:  Yes, these can be provided at the onset of the project.

80. The AOC “runs two separate data warehouses for the courts.”  Will the AOC provide specific architectural descriptions of those two environments?

AOC Answer:  Detailed architectures will be provided at the onset of the project work.
81. How many users of the current DW environment?  How many are currently remote (e.g., extranet via VPN or Internet) and local (intranet).

AOC Answer:  Approximately 400 users access the data warehouse environment using the intranet.  Another 100 or so currently use the Internet.
82. What is the average number of queries per hour, per day?  What is the peak load experienced to-date?

AOC Answer:  AOC anticipates up to 1000 users logged on at the same time, with up to 500 running queries at the same time.
83. Has the AOC established any Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) related to the EDW or its current architecture?  If so, what are the KPIs?

AOC Answer:  Query response time of less than five (5) seconds.
84. Concerning Project Scope Item 2.  Will the AOC require a Proof of Concept (POC) prior to award?  If so, how long will the AOC allow bidders for preparation time?  Will the AOC require the POC be performed in the AOC data center, or can we use our facilities?  Based on our experience with previous clients equipped with a similar DW tool configuration, we would require approximately two-three weeks lead time to prepare.

AOC Answer:  No proof of concept is planned.

85. Which edition of Informatica Power Center is in current use?  (e.g., Power Center 8 Standard Edition – SE; or Advanced Edition – AE.)

AOC Answer:  AOC currently uses Informatica PowerCenter 7 (standard edition).  Any potential upgrade will be a result of the solution proposed by the apparently successful vendor.

86. Informatica Power Center is a robust product and contains many options.  Which options are currently employed in the present architecture?

AOC Answer:  AOC uses the standard edition and does not currently own any additional options.

87. Has a budgetary estimate been established for this project?  What is it?

AOC Answer:  Funds for this project are included in the 2007-09 Biennium Funding Request, and we anticipate approval of that funding request.  
88. Will AOC be responsible for adequate WAN/LAN bandwidth?

AOC Answer:  Yes.

89. Does AOC anticipate the current installation of Informatica Power Center and the methods of operation are adequate to sustain current and anticipated data rate and functionality growth?

AOC Answer:  Yes.

90. What is meant by "publication" mentioned in project scope item 1?  How is this different than "documentation"?

AOC Answer:  The word “publication” may be read “documentation.”
91. Is all the data referred to in project scope item 2 the same data that is currently growing at a rate of 25GB per month?

AOC Answer:  Yes.

92. Is "timely, accurate, and complete data extraction" to be demonstrated against the new CMS as part of this bid?

AOC Answer:  No.

93. Will the current decision support policies and procedures be made available before this project starts?

AOC Answer:  Yes.

94. Will AOC have technical expertise on staff to support technologies other than IBM, Compaq, DB2, z/OS, SQL*Server, DataMirror, Informatica, Hyperion, and Brio at the time of project delivery?

AOC Answer:  No.  AOC expects on-site mentoring to be provided by the vendor.

95. Will the data warehouse be allowed to grow beyond 18 TB?

AOC Answer:  Yes.

96. What are the current methods of user authentication and the software/hardware that is used to accomplish this?
AOC Answer:  Product should use standard LDAP roles for establishing, authenticating, applying permissions for access.
97. Services Required include hardware to replace current ODS and data warehouses.  However, hardware has no cost category.  Is hardware cost included in Professional Services Cost Category?

AOC Answer:  Please see the first paragraph on page 18 of the RFP: “If vendor identifies additional cost categories over and above the five (5) categories shown above, ….. include those additional cost categories with the appropriate explanation.”

98. Page 23:  The "legacy system data will be the initial source for the Operational Data Store (ODS).  Once courts begin converting to the new CMS, the CMS databases will become a second source."  Will those courts be doing double entry or will they switch over completely, using only CMS?

AOC Answer:  As each court is converted, they will use only the new CMS.  No double entry is anticipated.

99. Page 26:  users currently use Hyperion 8 or Brio 6 to access the current EDW.  Will this continue to be a requirement or are other tools required?

AOC Answer:  Any potential upgrade to Hyperion 9 will be a result of the solution proposed by the apparently successful vendor.
100. What is the archiving requirement?  There are none stated on page 27.
AOC Answer:  Please refer to the Washington State requirements for data retention cited below. 

CLJ retention:

http://www.secstate.wa.gov/archives/doc/DIST-MUN%20Court%20Read-only%2010_02.doc 
Superior court retention:

http://www.secstate.wa.gov/archives/doc/COUNTY%20SUPR%20CT%20CLERK%202001.doc
101. Regarding item 2 for Project SCOPE, page 33; since CMS is not projected to go into initial release until January 2008, will the 4 month schedule include only for the legacy systems?

AOC Answer:  Yes.  But the successful solution will need to be able to show how it will accommodate the new source when it comes on line.

102. Will there be any duplication of data being fed into the EDW during the CMS conversion period?

AOC Answer:  Person information (address, phone, e-mail) may be duplicated during the conversion period. 

103. Will the Public Data Warehouse be required to be a separate database, or will a design effort be necessary to determine what data should be stored from the EDW?

AOC Answer:  The Public Data Warehouse (PDW) will NOT be a separate warehouse.  The design effort to determine the data for the PDW has been completed.

104. What are the retention requirements for data in the EDW and Public Data Warehouses, if any?  Would there be a requirement for a data archiving strategy?

AOC Answer:  Please refer to the Washington State requirements for data retention cited below. 

CLJ retention:

http://www.secstate.wa.gov/archives/doc/DIST-MUN%20Court%20Read-only%2010_02.doc 

Superior court retention:

http://www.secstate.wa.gov/archives/doc/COUNTY%20SUPR%20CT%20CLERK%202001.doc
105. Are there any other specific technology agreements already in place with the AOC that could facilitate the acquisition of hardware/software in a more time-effective and cost-effective manner?

AOC Answer:  Yes.  The AOC utilizes the Western States Contracting Association (WSCA) for hardware purchases.

106. Page 6, Paragraph 1:  When will the courts begin the conversion to CMS and how long is that process expected to last?

AOC Answer:  Pilot implementation is currently scheduled for sometime between January and May of 2008.  Conversion of all courts is anticipated to be sometime in 2011.
107. Page 6, Paragraph 2: Are you open to considering/using other data mining tools?

AOC Answer:  Yes.

108. Page 6, Paragraph 4:  “Databases in use are MS-SQL Server 2000.”  Is this for the ODS and or the two data warehouses?

AOC Answer:  Both.

109. Page 6, Paragraph 4:  What version of Informatica Power Center is currently being used?

AOC Answer:  AOC currently uses Informatica PowerCenter 7 (standard edition).  Any potential upgrade will be a result of the solution proposed by the apparently successful vendor.
110. Page 7, Paragraph 1:  Is current architecture documentation published, and can it be made available for our review.  What other technical documentation exists?

AOC Answer:  Current documentation will be made available at the onset of the contract.
111. Page 7, Paragraph 1, item 3 – regarding decision support tools – what sort of requirements are there for these tools?

AOC Answer:  A requirements document has been written by the AOC and will be made available to the apparently successful bidder.

112. Page 7 – Can you please provide a description of what types of security will need to be implemented to include both court user and public access?

AOC Answer:  Product should use standard LDAP roles for establishing, authenticating, applying permissions for access.
113. Page 7, Item 4:  What are the AOC staff roles that will require training and approximately how many in each role?

AOC Answer:  

ETL software training:  Five ETL developers and two administrators will require training.
Replication software training: two administrators and two developers will be trained.
Data quality software: two administrators will require training.  Six end users will need to be trained in how to develop data quality rules and create them in the software.
Reporting and ad-hoc query training:  30 AOC staff will need end user training.  Ten of the AOC will be expert users, adept at all aspects of the end-user tool.  There will be two staff designated for administrator training.

114. Page 14, Item 4:  What are the AOC personnel roles?

AOC Answer:  The AOC is asking what personnel the vendor expects to be provided by the AOC.

115. Page 15, Section 3, Item 7:  Is the term "data marts" being used interchangeably with Enterprise Data Warehouse?

AOC Answer:  Yes.  

116. Page 16: “…use and ease of integration with existing and future IT entities of the Judicial Information System (JIS).”  Can you please define these entities that the EDW need to interface with?

AOC Answer:   The EDW needs to use standard technologies to support possible future data sources, end user tools, etc.
117. Are there any specific platforms the system needs to run on (either existing hardware or client preference)?

AOC Answer:  No.

118. Is there a specific database engine the EDW is required to run on?

AOC Answer:  No.

119. Page 5:  “AOC is replacing the legacy application and some of the Web-based applications.”  Could you provide a list of the Web-based applications that need to be replaced and those that need not?

AOC Answer:  The Web-based applications being replaced are to be taken up by the new CMS, not the EDW.

120. What is the technology used for the current Web-based applications?  How will they interface with the new CMS based Web applications?

AOC Answer:  The new CMS will replace the Web-based applications.

121. Do the current Web-based applications serve only for the purpose of reporting?  If not, then what other usages do they provide?

AOC Answer:  The Web-based applications provide case management for specific sectors of the court system, namely the appellate and juvenile courts.

122. Are DB2 and MS-SQL Server the only two databases used by the four court levels (appellate, superior, limited jurisdiction, and juvenile) currently?

AOC Answer:  Yes.

123. Is Informatica the designated ETL tool for the EDW?  Could it be replaced should we find a more effective ETL tool?

AOC Answer:  AOC will consider all alternatives.

124. Could we include a COTS product to handle data quality?  Is license a concern?

AOC Answer:  A COTS product for data quality is an option.  However, a perpetual use license must be included in the response, and yearly maintenance costs need to be clearly identified.

125. What are the current two data warehouses? Are they Grid-based?

AOC Answer:  One warehouse contains information from the appellate and juvenile courts; the second contains courts of limited jurisdiction data.  They are not grid-based.

Questions on Sample Contract – Appendix D

126. Are we permitted to take exceptions to contract terms and conditions?

AOC Answer:  The AOC will negotiate the terms and conditions of the contract in good faith with the Apparently Successful Vendor (ASV).  As with all public sector contracts, certain terms and conditions are required by law while other terms and conditions are needed to protect the courts' interest.  If the AOC and the initially designated ASV cannot reach an agreement, the AOC has the option of designating another organization as the ASV and entering into negotiations with the subsequent ASV.

127. What type contract is it going to be?  On pages 17 of 18 and 18 of 18 there is reference to this being a deliverables based contract tied to milestones which sounds as though it is fixed price.  However, articles 4.6 and 6.2 on page 7 of the sample contract talks about detailing expenses, providing receipts when requesting reimbursement, etc.; so this seems to be leaning toward a cost or time and materials type contract.

AOC Answer:  The contract will be a fixed price, deliverables-based contract.
